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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Ward and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM: Sherilyn Lombos, Deputy City Manager 
 
DATE: April 4, 2006 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of a Status Report on the Pier Café Space Operations and 

Management 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council accept a presentation from staff regarding the current 
operations and management of the Pier Café space and a presentation from Oceanographic 
Teaching Station representatives regarding a proposal for an alternative use of the space. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There is no financial impact associated with the recommendation.  The City currently receives 
$500 per month from the Pier Café (the lease specifies $500/month or 7% of gross receipts, 
whichever is greater.  To date we have only received the minimum payment and have not 
conducted an audit of gross receipts).  Under the OTS proposal, it is unclear how much, if any, rent 
OTS would pay. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City assumed operational control of the Manhattan State Beach Pier in 1988. Terms in the 
agreement between the City and the State provide that the City may grant concessions on the 
property consistent with use by the general public.  A food concession has existed in the 
Roundhouse since that time.   
 
In November 2003, due to the expiration of the existing lease, the City released a request for 
proposals for the pier concession; public notices were published in the Beach Reporter and Daily 
Breeze, letters were mailed to all individuals with a Manhattan Beach restaurant business license, 
and a ¼ page advertisement was placed in The Beach Reporter soliciting proposals.  
 
Of the five proposals submitted, four proposed a food concession and one, submitted by the 
Oceanographic Teaching Station (OTS), proposed expansion of the current OTS facility. A City 
selection committee comprised of the Deputy City Manager, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director, Management Intern, and a City Council Member reviewed the submitted proposals.  The 
committee narrowed the number of proposals to three after deciding not to further consider the 
OTS proposal due to the fact that it is not a food service concession and another proposal that did 
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not have any restaurant experience. 
 
In February 2004 the City entered into a five-year lease agreement with Rock Fish LLC to operate 
the pier café concession (expires February 2009).  For a variety of reasons the café was not as 
successful as originally envisioned and from fall 2004 through spring 2005, the café was open a 
minimal amount of time and was not being aggressively worked by the operator.  During that time, 
OTS representatives discussed taking over the lease from Rock Fish LLC and ultimately in March 
2005, transmitted a proposal to the City asking that the lease be transferred to them and included a 
letter from David Zislas giving Rock Fish LLC’s support. 
 
Staff discussed the issue with the City Council and it was decided that no decision would be made 
at that time.  The direction to the staff was that the City Council liked having a food concession at 
the end of the Pier and that if the concession was viable, they would like to leave it in place.  
Council further directed that they would like to see the current operator go through a full summer 
to determine if it was viable before making any decisions on an alternative use.  That direction was 
communicated to both Rock Fish LLC representatives (David & Mike Zislas) and OTS 
representatives (see attachment). 
 
Early in 2005, Vera Janischova approached Mike Zislas and worked out an operating agreement 
with him to run the Pier Café.  Vera took over day-to-day operations in May 2005 and has run it 
ever since. 
 
In January 2006, Vera and Mike Zislas approached City staff with a request to transfer the lease 
from Rock Fish LLC to the Bohemian Beach Café.  After much discussion, it was decided that 
instead of proceeding with a transfer request, that Mike and David Zislas would allow Vera to 
continue to run the business under the existing arrangement.  In the meantime, OTS representatives 
approached the City and said that if consideration of the lease transfer was going to happen, that 
they would like the opportunity to again make their proposal for an alternative use of the space. 
 
Dick Fruin with the OTS approached the City Council in February requesting that the Council 
agendize this item, to which the Council agreed. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The lease agreement requires that the café be open eight hours per week during winter months and 
four hours per day during summer months.  Since May 2005, the operator of the café has the space 
open every day (with very few exceptions) for extended hours, even during the winter months.  
Vera has arguably done the best job running the space of anyone in recent memory in terms of 
days/hours open and the care that has been given the space.  Staff conducted an analysis of 
operations for the summer months of May through August 2005 and the winter months of 
November & December 2005.  Receipts from those months were reviewed and it was determined 
that the number of beverage transactions/sales would be used to estimate the number of visitors to 
the café (that number is a minimum as one beverage may be shared or food could have been 
purchased without a beverage; however, beverage transactions are the most common transactions). 
 Following is a summary: 
 
- An average summer week day (Monday – Friday) sees approximately 120 visitors (based on 

beverage sales) at the café. 
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- An average summer weekend day (Saturday & Sunday) sees approximately 180 visitors at the 

café. 
- An average winter week-day (Monday – Friday) sees approximately 55 visitors at the café. 
- An average winter week-end (Saturday & Sunday) sees approximately 95 visitors at the café. 
 
From staff’s perspective, the café space is viable; we have a good operator who keeps it open a 
minimum of 8 to 10 hours per day (sometimes up to 12 hours per day) and is giving the business a 
lot of attention.  There is an existing lease in place, with requirements being met.  We see no 
compelling reason for the City Council to consider an alternative proposal at this point. 
 
CONCLUSION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file a presentation from staff, Vera Janischova 
and Mike Zislas regarding existing operations of the pier café and a presentation from OTS 
representatives regarding their proposal for an alternative use of the space. 
 
Attachments: A. April 7, 2005 letter from City staff to OTS & Rock Fish LLC 
  B. Packet of information from the Oceanographic Teaching Stations 
 
cc: Rock Fish, LLC (Mike Zislas and David Zislas) 
 Vera Janischova 
 OTS (Dick Fruin) 
 



City Hall 1400 Highland Avenue Manhattan Beach, CA 90266-4795 
Telephone (310) 802-5000 FAX (310) 802-5001 TDD (310) 546-3501 

Fire Department Temporary Facility Address: 1599 Valley Drive, Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 FAX (310) 802-5201 
Police Department Temporary Facility Address: 1501 N. Peck Ave., Manhattan Beach, CA 90266 FAX (310) 802-5101 

Public Works Department Address:  3621 Bell Avenue, Manhattan Beach, CA 90266  FAX (310) 802-5301 
Visit the City of Manhattan Beach Web Site at www.citymb.info 

 
 
 

 
April 7, 2005 
 
 
Oceanographic Teaching Stations, Inc.    RockFish, LLC 
Attn: Dick Fruin       Attn: Mike Zislas 
2 Manhattan Beach Blvd.      120 Manhattan Beach Blvd. 
Manhattan Beach CA  90266       Manhattan Beach CA  90266  
 
Dear Dick & Mike, 
 
The City received the letter from OTS dated March 22, 2005 requesting that the City Council relieve 
RockFish LLC from their obligations under the lease with the City for a food concession at the end of 
the Pier and allow OTS to lease that space for additional aquarium usage. 
 
I wanted to let you know that the City Council met in closed session on April 5th to discuss the issue.  To 
a person, the Council is totally supportive of the aquarium; they recognize it as an asset to the Manhattan 
Beach community.  The City Council also recognizes that the food concession run by RockFish LLC 
was just granted in February 2004; given the prolonged discussions regarding the signage and seating on 
the Pier, the Council believes that the new food concession has yet to reach its full potential. 
 
The Council has decided to deny OTS’s request at this time.  They would like the current arrangement in 
the Roundhouse to continue through the spring and summer.  After evaluating a full season of operations 
they may be willing to reconsider this request. 
 
If you have any questions, please feel free to give me a call at (310) 802-5054 or via email at 
slombos@citymb.info. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Sherilyn Lombos 
Deputy City Manager 
 
c: Mayor and City Councilmembers 

Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
















